
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS MEETING – November 17, 2020       PAGE 1 

 

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS MEETING 
Electronic Meeting 

November 17, 2020 at 11:00 AM 
 

AGENDA 

The public will be able to view the meeting on San Juan County’s Facebook live and Youtube channel 

CALL TO ORDER 

ROLL CALL 

INVOCATION 

PUBLIC COMMENT 

Public comments will be accepted through the following Zoom 

link: https://us02web.zoom.us/j/3125521102 Meeting ID: 312 552 1102 One tap 

mobile +16699006833,,3125521102# US (San Jose). There will be a three-minute time limit for each 

person wishing to comment. If you exceed that three-minute time limit the meeting controller will mute 

your line. 

CONSENT AGENDA (Routine Matters) Mack McDonald, San Juan County Administrator 

The Consent Agenda is a means of expediting the consideration of routine matters. If a Commissioner 

requests that items be removed from the consent agenda, those items are placed at the beginning of the 

regular agenda as a new business action item. Other than requests to remove items, a motion to approve 

the items on the consent agenda is not debatable. 

1. Check Register for the Week of 10/20-10/27 

2. October 20, 2020 Meeting Minutes 

3. Streakwave Wireless Purchase of $20,447.27 using CARES Act Funds for IT upgrades 

4. GMAIL Upgrade of $24,192 Using CARES Act Funds 

RECOGNITIONS, PRESENTATIONS, AND INFORMATIONAL ITEMS 

5. Introduction of a nonprofit organization Restoring Ancestral Winds, Inc., Yolanda Francisco-

Nez, MBA, Executive Director 

1



BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS MEETING – November 17, 2020       PAGE 2 

6. Consideration of letter recommending a public hearing by Utah Division of Water Quality on 

the permit application for underground in-situ mining by Lisbon Valley Copper Mine. Nick 

Sandberg, County Public Lands Coordinator 

7. Consideration of a letter with comments on the Canyon Rims Travel Management Plan (BLM). 

Nick Sandberg, County Public Lands Coordinator 

BUSINESS/ACTION 

8. Consideration and Approval of Verizon Hotspot Grant Contract, Nicole Perkins, Library 

Director 

9. Consideration and Approval/Signature from Commissioners for Cellular One Hotspot Grant, 

Nicole Perkins, Library Director 

10. Consideration and Approval of the Building Resilient Infrastructures and Communities 

Mitigation Plan Grant, Tammy Gallegos, Emergency Manager 

11. Presentation of Final CARES Act Allocations 

12. Consideration and Agreement of a Memorandum of Understanding and Agreement with Utah 

Association of Counties Tax Refund Exchange and Compliance System (U-TRECS), Mack 

McDonald, Chief Administrative Officer 

13. Consideration and Approval of a Participation Agreement with Gouldings Monument Valley 

Enterprises, L.C. for $100,000 of CARES Act Funds for the Private/Public Well Upgrades, 

Mack McDonald, Chief Administrative Officer 

14. Approval of the 2020 General Election results by the San Juan County Board of 

Commissioners, John David Nielson, County Clerk/Auditor 

COMMISSION REPORTS 

ADJOURNMENT 

*The Board of San Juan County Commissioners can call a closed meeting at any time during the Regular 

Session if necessary, for reasons permitted under UCA 52-4-205* 

All agenda items shall be considered as having potential Commission action components and may be 

completed by an electronic method **In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, persons 

needing auxiliary communicative aids and services for this meeting should contact the San Juan County 

Clerk’s Office: 117 South Main, Monticello or telephone 435-587-3223, giving reasonable notice** 

2



3

Item 1.



4

Item 1.



5

Item 1.



6

Item 1.



BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS MEETING – October 20, 2020       PAGE 1 

 

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS MEETING 
Electronic Meeting 

October 20, 2020 at 11:00 AM 
 

MINUTES 

The public will be able to view the meeting on San Juan County’s Facebook live and Youtube channel.  

 

CALL TO ORDER 

ROLL CALL 

INVOCATION 

PUBLIC COMMENT 

Public comments will be received by joining the Zoom Meeting. 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/84141002383?pwd=S2JlOVoreXRzRTZLZmJZZ1lLL2N2UT09 

There will be a three minute time limit for each person wishing to comment. If you exceed that three 

minute time limit the meeting cont olle  will mute you  line.  

Lynda Smirz – Lynda stated that the Planning and Zoning Commission is working on an overnight 

rental ordinance. She asked the commission to not pass the proposed subdivisions until the ordinance 

can be reviewed. 

Monette Clarke – Monette asked the commission if the proposed subdivisions on the agenda in 

compliance with the Spanish Valley Land Use Ordinance and why or why not? She expressed concern 

about the proposed subdivision being used as a nightly rental without there being a nightly rental 

ordinance in place. 

1. Online Instruction 

CONSENT AGENDA (Routine Matters) Mack McDonald, San Juan County Administrator 

The Consent Agenda is a means of expediting the consideration of routine matters. If a Commissioner 

requests that items be removed from the consent agenda, those items are placed at the beginning of the 

regular agenda as a new business action item. Other than requests to remove items, a motion to approve 

the items on the consent agenda is not debatable. 

7

Item 2.



BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS MEETING – October 20, 2020       PAGE 2 

A motion was made by Commissioner Adams to accept the agenda into the record. The motion was 

seconded by Commission Chairman Maryboy. 

Voting Yea: Commission Chairman Maryboy, Commissioner Adams 

 

2. October 6, 2020 Board of Commission Meeting Minutes 

3. Week of 10/7-10/13/2020 Check Registers 

4. Consideration of an Agreement with the San Juan County Public Health Department and the 

State of Utah Health Department for FY21 Violence and Injury Prevention Program contract 

5. Consideration of an Agreement between The Utah Highway Safety Office and San Juan 

County Health Department in support of the rural seat belt pilot program being conducted in 

San Juan County. 

6. Consideration and Approval of the purchase of EMS and Sheriff 800 Mhz Radios using 

CARES Act Funds 

7. Renew and Extend the County’s Drought Declaration 

8. Consideration and Approval of the UDOT Federal Aid Agreement Contract as a pass-through 

agency for the McElmo Creek Bridge with an increased cost of $71,072 

9. Consideration and approval of the UDOT Federal Aid Agreement Contract for Recapture Creek 

Bridge with an increased cost of $46,009 

RECOGNITIONS, PRESENTATIONS, AND INFORMATIONAL ITEMS 

10. Employee Recognition, Mack McDonald, Chief Administrative Officer 

Mack recognized Tammy Gallegos for her role as the county Aging Director and Emergency 

Manager. Mack explained that Tammy has gone through extensive training and talked about 

the time period required to be certified for the position as well as completing compliance and 

training. Commissioner Adams commended Tammy for all of her hard work and made a 

motion to approve the letter recognizing her efforts. Commissioner Maryboy seconded the 

motion and also acknowledged Tammy and the wonderful job that she’s doing. Voting Yea: 

Commission Chairman Maryboy, Commissioner Adams. 

11. Consideration and Approval of the updated Emergency Operations Plan, Tammy Gallegos, 

Emergency Manager 

Tammy presented for approval the updated Emergency Operations Plan. She explained that it is 

renewed every two years. Tammy also stated that the plan, which is the framework for how the 

county handles emergencies, was thoroughly reviewed by herself and the county’s legal team. 

A motion to approve the Emergency Operations Plan was made by Commissioner Adams and 

seconded by Commission Chairman Maryboy. 

Voting Yea: Commission Chairman Maryboy, Commissioner Adams 

 

8

Item 2.



BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS MEETING – October 20, 2020       PAGE 3 

12. Presentation and update on the Aquatic Invasive Species (AIS) Program. Sergeant Krystal 

Tucker, Utah Division of Wildlife Resources 

Sergeant Tucker spoke to the commission about the Quagga Muscle, which is an invasive 

species that resides in Lake Powell and Utah. She told the commission that additional 

mandatory inspection stations are being considered in Blanding. Sergeant Tucker explained that 

the inspection stations would be staffed year round by local community people who would 

check and decontaminate boats coming from Lake Powell who may unknowingly have the 

Quagga Muscle on their boat. She also explained that it would be an additional layer of 

protection for Recapture Reservoir and other Utah waters. A motion to accept the presentation 

was made by Commissioner Adams and seconded by Commission Vice-Chair Grayeyes. 

Voting Yea: Commission Chairman Maryboy, Commission Vice-Chair Grayeyes, 

Commissioner Adams 

 

13. Letter of Support for Goosenecks State Parks Dark Sky 

Designation, Natalie Randall, Director Economic Development & Visitor Services 

Natalie presented a letter of support to Goosenecks State Park which is applying to be 

designated as an International Dark Skies Park. She explained that if granted this designation 

they would join other local parks as being recognized as a Dark Skies park. With this 

designation, increased visitation to the park would be expected which would help the local 

economy. A motion made to approve the letter of support was made by Commissioner Adams 

and seconded by Commission Vice-Chair Grayeyes. 

Voting Yea: Commission Vice-Chair Grayeyes, Commissioner Adams 

Voting Abstaining: Commission Chairman Maryboy 

 

14. Consideration of the Lisbon Valley Mine Plan Modifications Comment Letter, Nick Sandberg, 

County Public Lands Coordinator 

Nick presented comment letter which gave comments over the modification to the Lisbon 

Valley Mine Plan. He explained that the modification from the 2016 plan would allow for 

continued mining in the GTO pit and continued mining with an expansion in the Centennial pit. 

Nick explained that under the modified plan the mining disturbance would decrease of 315 

acres due to better pit planning of mine waste disposal. Nick also stated that the expected life of 

the plan would be 16 years. A motion to approve the comment letter was made by 

Commissioner Adams and seconded by Commission Vice-Chair Grayeyes. 

Voting Yea: Commission Vice-Chair Grayeyes, Commissioner Adams 

Voting Abstaining: Commission Chairman Maryboy 

 

 

 

 

 

9

Item 2.



BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS MEETING – October 20, 2020       PAGE 4 

BUSINESS/ACTION 

15. Consideration and Agreement of a Cooperative Law Enforcement Agreement between San 

Juan County and the USDA, Forest Service Manti-La Sal National Forest, Sheriff Jason 

Torgerson 

Sheriff Torgerson presented an annual renewal of a cooperative law enforcement contract for 

approval. He explained that the county would receive $5000 which would be used for deputy 

time and equipment. A motion to approve the agreement was made by Commission Vice-Chair 

Grayeyes and seconded by Commissioner Adams. 

Voting Yea: Commission Chairman Maryboy, Commission Vice-Chair Grayeyes, 

Commissioner Adams 

 

16. Consideration and Approval of an Aging Contract for Meals on Wheels Funding with the State 

of Utah. Tammy Gallegos, Aging Director 

Tammy presented a contract to be able to provide meals to county residents with access needs. 

She explained that the contract runs December 31, 2020. A motion to approve the contract was 

made by Commission Vice-Chair Grayeyes and seconded by Commissioner Adams. 

Voting Yea: Commission Chairman Maryboy, Commission Vice-Chair Grayeyes, 

Commissioner Adams 

 

17. Consideration and Approval of the lease agreement with Horsepower Fleet Leasing, LLC 

Master Lease Agreement, Mack McDonald, Chief Administrative Officer 

Mack presented, for approval, the continuation of a lease agreement to use Horsepower Fleet 

Leasing to lease vehicles for the Sheriff’s office. Mack explained that the cost to the county last 

year was $18500. Mack also stated that Horsepower Fleet Leasing had great rates compared to 

other companies and added value to the county. A motion to approve the contract was made by 

Commissioner Adams, and seconded by Commission Vice-Chair Grayeyes. Voting Yea: 

Commission Chairman Maryboy, Commission Vice-Chair Grayeyes, Commissioner Adams. 

18. Consideration and Approval of the Deer Haven Park Subdivision Amendment 6, La Sal, Scott 

Burton, Subdivision Administrator 

Scott presented for approval an amendment to an existing subdivision which realigns the road 

on the platte map with where the road is actually located. He explained that the road was built 

around a grove of trees rather than going in a straight line through the trees. A motion to 

approve the amendment was made by Commissioner Adams and seconded by Commission 

Vice-Chair Grayeyes. 

Voting Yea: Commission Chairman Maryboy, Commission Vice-Chair Grayeyes, 

Commissioner Adams 

 

19. Consideration and Approval of the Double R Ranch Subdivision, Amending and vacating Lot 1 

of the Dyke Subdivision, La Sal, Scott Burton, Subdivision Administrator 

10

Item 2.



BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS MEETING – October 20, 2020       PAGE 5 

Scott presented an amendment to the Double R Ranch Subdivision and said that Lot 1 would be 

vacated from its current subdivision to create to lots of  48 acres and 30 acres. A motion was 

made to approve the amendments by Commissioner Adams, Seconded by Commission Vice-

Chair Grayeyes. 

Voting Yea: Commission Chairman Maryboy, Commission Vice-Chair Grayeyes, 

Commissioner Adams 

 

20. Consideration and Approval of the Zufelt Subdivision, Lot 4 Amendment, Spanish Valley, 

Scott Burton, Subdivision Administrator 

Scott presented an amendment to the Zufelt Subdivision and explained that the amendment is 

creating two lots out of one. He stated that one lot has an existing residence and there would be 

the creation of a lane back to the other lot. A motion was made to approve the amendments by 

Commissioner Adams, Seconded by Commission Vice-Chair Grayeyes. 

Voting Yea: Commission Chairman Maryboy, Commission Vice-Chair Grayeyes, 

Commissioner Adams 

  

21. Consideration and Approval of the San Juan Estates, Phase 3 Lot 33 Amendment 2, Spanish 

Valley, Scott Burton, Subdivision Administrator 

Scott, lastly, requested the approval of amending Lot 33 of San Juan Estates to create 6 

additional lots with the sizes of ¼ acre for 2 lots and 4 lots being a little over 1/3 of an acre. A 

motion was made by Commissioner Adams to approve the amendment. The motion was 

seconded by Commission Vice-Chair Grayeyes. 

Voting Yea: Commission Chairman Maryboy, Commission Vice-Chair Grayeyes, 

Commissioner Adams 

 

COMMISSION REPORTS 

Commissioner Adams – Commissioner Adams reported that he will attend an AOG meeting in Price on 

Thursday. 

Commissioner Grayeyes – Commissioner Grayeyes reported that he is trying to communicate with 

NDOT on the proposed route between Oljato and Navajo Mountain. He also explained that he is 

working with the chapter and school board and will attend an NRF meeting later on today. 

Commissioner Maryboy – Commissioner Maryboy asked everyone to stay safe. He also responded to a 

call from a citizen about a road on mountain that he was told had been eroded. After a visit to the area, 

he explained that the road looked to be in good condition. Commissioner Maryboy also explained that 

there have been issues raised from residents about the school district. He also spoke about a proposed 

amendment to the Navajo Nation government. 

 

 

 

11

Item 2.



BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS MEETING – October 20, 2020       PAGE 6 

ADJOURNMENT 

A motion to adjourn the meeting was made by Commissioner Adams, Seconded by Commission Vice-

Chair Grayeyes. 

Voting Yea: Commission Chairman Maryboy, Commission Vice-Chair Grayeyes, Commissioner 

Adams 

 

*The Board of San Juan County Commissioners can call a closed meeting at any time during the 

Regular Session if necessary, for reasons permitted under UCA 52-4-205* 

All agenda items shall be considered as having potential Commission action components and may be 

completed by an electronic method **In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, persons 

needing auxiliary communicative aids and services for this meeting should contact the San Juan County 

Clerk’s Office: 117 South Main, Monticello or telephone 435-587-3223, giving reasonable notice** 

 

APPROVED: 

  

DATE: 

 

 San Juan County Board of County Commissioners   

 

 

 

ATTEST: 

  

 

 

DATE: 

 

 San Juan County Clerk/Auditor   

 

12

Item 2.



13

Item 3.



14

Item 3.



15

Item 4.



 

 

 

COMMISSION STAFF REPORT 

MEETING DATE: November 17, 2020 

SUBMITTED BY: Mack McDonald 

TITLE: Introduction of a nonprofit organization Restoring Ancestral Winds, 

Inc., Yolanda Francisco-Nez, MBA, Executive Director 

RECOMMENDATION:  

 

SUMMARY 

Restoring Ancestral Winds, Inc. is located in Sandy, Utah. We are one of 19 tribal coalitions in the US 

funded by USDOJ Office of Violence Against Women Tribal Program. We offer technical assistance, 

policy and advocacy, and training to professionals who work with tribal communities throughout the 

state. This includes victim advocates, law enforcement, and government officials, the Utah legislature 

and others. The Navajo Nation government owns a domestic violence shelter in Blanding called Gentle 

IronHawk Shelter (GIS). We have provided some support to the GIS staff and to the Navajo/Diné and 

White Mesa Ute community. 

HISTORY/PAST ACTION 

N/A 

FISCAL IMPACT 

N/A 

 

 

16

Item 5.



 

 

 

COMMISSION STAFF REPORT 

MEETING DATE: November 17, 2020 

SUBMITTED BY: Nick Sandberg, Public Lands Coordinator 

TITLE: Consideration of letter recommending a public hearing by Utah Division 

of Water Quality on permit application for underground in-situ mining by 

Lisbon Valley Copper Mine. 

RECOMMENDATION: Sign letter 

 

SUMMARY 

Utah Division of Water Quality is providing a public comment period on the proposed issuance of a 

permit for underground injection of an acid solution for in-situ copper recovery at the Lisbon Valley 

Copper Mine.  Area residents and the County have concerns on the potential effects on underground 

water quality and quantity especially to local users dependent upon existing water wells in the area.  The 

subject letter requests that Utah Division of Water Quality conduct a public hearing so the proposal can 

be explained to the public and affected parties through a presentation and question and answer format.  

Better informed comments could then be made on the proposal.  

HISTORY/PAST ACTION 

None on this proposal. 

FISCAL IMPACT 

None at present. 

17

Item 6.



 

195 North 1950 West • Salt Lake City, UT                                                                                                                                                                 
 Mailing Address:  PO Box 144870 • Salt Lake City, UT  84114-4870                                                                                                                 

 Telephone (801) 536-4300 • Fax (801) 536-4301 • TDD (801) 536-4284                                                                                                         
www.deq.utah.gov 

Printed on 100% recycled paper 

 

State of Utah  
 
 
 

GARY R. HERBERT 
Governor 

 
SPENCER J. COX 

Lieutenant Governor 

Department of 
Environmental Quality 

 
L. Scott Baird  

Executive Director 
 

DIVISION OF WATER QUALITY 
Erica Brown Gaddis, PhD 

Director 
 
 

 
November 4, 2020 

 
Division of Water Quality 

Utah Department of Environmental Quality 
Public Notice of Intent to Issue Permit  

Underground Injection Control Class III Area Permit 
In Situ Copper Recovery 

 
Purpose of Public Notice 
The Utah Department of Environmental Quality (DEQ) is soliciting comments on the request to authorize a 
new Underground Injection Control (UIC) Class III permit as described below.   The permit is issued by 
the Director of the Division of Water Quality (DWQ) under authority of the Utah Water Quality Act, 
Section 19-5-106(g) Utah Code Ann. 1953, as amended and Utah Administrative Code R317-7.   Under 
Section R317-7-13 the Director of DWQ will investigate and provide written response to all citizen 
complaints duly submitted. In addition, the Director shall not oppose intervention in any civil or 
administrative proceeding by any citizen where permissive intervention may be authorized by statute or 
rule. The Director will publish notice of and provide at least thirty (30) days of public comment on any 
proposed settlement of any enforcement action. Utah Administrative Code R317-7-13 can be viewed at the 
following internet URL: https://rules.utah.gov/publicat/code/r317/r317-007.htm#E14.  
 
Permit Information 
 

Permittee Name: Lisbon Valley Mining Co., LLC (Lisbon Valley) 
 

Facility Location: Lisbon Valley, San Juan County 
 
Mailing Address: PO Box 248 

 La Sal, UT 84532 
 
Lisbon Valley is currently an existing open pit heap leach copper mine and has submitted a UIC Class III 
Area Permit Application and Aquifer Exemption Request to construct and operate Class III in-situ copper 
recovery injection wells in south central San Juan County, Utah. This permit will allow Lisbon Valley to 
continue extraction of copper from ore within mineralized zones of the Burro Canyon aquifer (including 
the Dakota and Burro Canyon Formations) generally between 200 and 900 feet below the ground’s surface.  
These resources are currently uneconomical to develop using open pit mining methods and Lisbon Valley 
is planning to extend the life of mine by adopting in situ copper recovery technology. The permit requires 
the operator to utilize best available technology in the construction, operation and closure of the in situ 
copper recovery facilities.  It also provides for the monitoring of ground water and requires the operator to 
monitor the perimeter of the wellfield both laterally and beneath. Wellfield closure will follow copper 
recovery to restore groundwater quality by rinsing and plugging and abandonment of injection and 
recovery wells.   

18

Item 6.

https://rules.utah.gov/publicat/code/r317/r317-007.htm#E14


 
Public Comments 
Public comments are invited any time prior to Friday, December 4, 2020.  Comments may be directed to 
the Division of Water Quality, PO Box 144870, Salt Lake City, UT 84114-4870.  All comments received 
prior to close of business Friday, December 4, 2020, will be considered in the formulation of final 
determinations to be imposed on the permit.  A public hearing may be held if written requests are received 
within the first 15 days of this public comment period that demonstrate significant public interest and 
substantive issues exist to warrant holding a hearing. 
 
 Additional Information 
Additional information may be obtained upon request by contacting Drummond Earley at (801) 536-4088 
or dearley@utah.gov or by writing to the aforementioned address.  Related documents are available for 
review on the DWQ web page at https://deq.utah.gov/water-quality/water-quality-public-notices.  
 
In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, individuals with special needs (including auxiliary 
communicative aids and services) should contact the Utah State Accessibility website at 
https://www.utah.gov/accessibility.html.  
 
DWQ-2020-020484 
 

19

Item 6.

mailto:dearley@utah.gov
https://deq.utah.gov/water-quality/water-quality-public-notices
https://www.utah.gov/accessibility.html


SAN JUAN COUNTY COMMISSION 
Kenneth Maryboy                Chairman 

                                                                                                                                                     Willie Grayeyes                  Vice-Chair 
Bruce Adams               Commissioner 
Mack McDonald          Administrator 

PO BOX 9   -   117 South Main Street   -   Monticello, Utah 84535-0009   -   435-587-3225   -   Fax 435-587-2447 

 

                                                                                                                                                        November 17, 2020 
 

Mr. Drummond Earley 
Utah Division of Water Quality 
P.O. Box 144870 
Salt Lake City, Utah  84114-4870 
 
Re:  Lisbon Valley Mining Company In Situ Copper Recovery Proposal 
 
Dear Mr. Earley: 
 
We have reviewed your Public Notice of Intent to Issue a Permit for Underground Injection for In Situ Copper 
Recovery at the Lisbon Valley Copper Mine in San Juan County and have concerns about the potential effects on 
underground water quality. 
 
This proposal includes the injection of an acid solution and the recovery of that solution with extracted 
copper from the Burro Canyon aquifer.  This aquifer and others in the area are the sources of culinary and 
livestock water used by residents and livestock operations in the area. 
 
Residents and livestock users of these existing water wells are understandably concerned with the 
potential effects on water quality of these wells with the proposed injection of a sulfuric acid solution into 
the aquifer that supplies these wells.  Quality water sources are scarce in this area and degradation or 
decrease of these waters would have devastating effects on culinary and livestock users of these waters. 
 
We recommend that this proposal be explained in a public hearing where representatives of the mining 
company, your office and other agency officials would explain the proposal and its potential effects and 
answer questions from the public and concerned landowners.  This would hopefully allow for a better 
understanding of the proposal and potential effects and allow for informative comments. 
 
We appreciate your consideration of our request. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
Kenneth Maryboy 
Commission Chairman 

   

20

Item 6.



 

 

 

COMMISSION STAFF REPORT 

MEETING DATE: November 17, 2020 

SUBMITTED BY: Nick Sandberg, Public Lands Coordinator 

TITLE: Consideration of a letter with comments on the Canyon Rims Travel 

Management Plan (BLM). 

RECOMMENDATION: Sign letter 

 

SUMMARY 

BLM has provided a public comment period on the draft Environmental Assessment for the Canyon 

Rims Travel Management Plan.  Preparation of this plan and associated EA is required by a settlement 

agreement with plaintiffs in a lawsuit filed against BLM Travel Plans approved with its 2008 Resource 

Management Plans (RMP), including the Moab RMP.  This analysis includes County B and D roads in 

the Hatch Point and Shafer Basin areas.  The subject letter includes the County’s comments on the EA. 

HISTORY/PAST ACTION 

The County participated as a Cooperating Agency and as a Consulting Party in the preparation of the 

draft Travel Plan. 

FISCAL IMPACT 

None. 

21

Item 7.



SAN JUAN COUNTY COMMISSION 
Kenneth Maryboy                Chairman 

                                                                                                                                                     Willie Grayeyes                  Vice-Chair 
Bruce Adams               Commissioner 
Mack McDonald          Administrator 

PO BOX 9   -   117 South Main Street   -   Monticello, Utah 84535-0009   -   435-587-3225   -   Fax 435-587-2447 

  

 November 17, 2020 

Nicollee Gaddis-Wyatt 

Field Manager 

Moab Field Office 

Bureau of Land Management 

82 East Dogwood 

Moab, Utah  84532 

 

Re:  Canyon Rims Travel Management Plan 

Dear Ms. Gaddis-Wyatt: 

We have reviewed the Canyon Rims Travel Management Plan Environmental Assessment and find it to be 

mostly consistent with input and discussion the County offered earlier in the analysis process as a 

Cooperating Agency.  We appreciate that the document recognizes the San Juan County OHV Trail System. 

 

We suggest that Section 1.5 of the EA (Conformance with Management Plans and Policies) include 

reference to the San Juan Resource Management Plan and Travel Plan.   These plans are integral to the 

management of San Juan County including resources and infrastructure on BLM lands included in the 

analysis. 

 

Section 3.1.3 General Assumptions is a good section of practical assumptions.  We especially agree with 

the 1st and 4th assumptions (consideration of future new routes being part of ongoing operation and 

management of travel planning; and providing for a variety of OHV opportunities/experiences to reduce 

user inclination to travel off designated routes).   

 

We understand that the old Hatch Point Road (D1783) south of the Anticline Overlook could not be 

considered in this analysis since it is not recognized in the current Moab 2008 Resource Management 

Plan/Travel Plan.  However, we may request that this road be added to a future version of the Travel Plan 

as it could offer a safer, slower road for OHV users than travel on the main Hatch Point Road which may be 

a paved and higher speed road in the future. 

 

Although the proposed designation in Alternative D of some minor roads as closed or as administrative or 

authorized use only is inconsistent with the San Juan Travel Plan we understand the reasoning for these 

designations.  Most of these roads show limited or no use or are duplications of nearby roads that provide 

better access.  Closure or designation as administrative use would have no affect on the County’s RS2477 

claims for these roads. 

 

22

Item 7.



PO BOX 9   -   117 South Main Street   -   Monticello, Utah 84535-0009   -   435-587-3225   -   Fax 435-587-2447 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

We concur with the analysis in the EA and would support the adoption of Alternative D in the final 

decision as being the most consistent with the County Resource Management Plan and Travel Plan.  We 

appreciate your consideration of our comments. 

 

Sincerely, 

 

 

 

Kenneth Maryboy 

Commission Chairman 

 

   

23

Item 7.



 

Canyon Rims Travel Management Plan Environmental Assessment 

DOI-BLM-UT-Y010-2018-0220-EA  I-2 

 

 

Canyon Rims Alternative Route Networks 
Alternative A 

  

24

Item 7.



 

Canyon Rims Travel Management Plan Environmental Assessment 

DOI-BLM-UT-Y010-2018-0220-EA  I-3 

 

 

Alternative B 

  

25

Item 7.



 

Canyon Rims Travel Management Plan Environmental Assessment 

DOI-BLM-UT-Y010-2018-0220-EA  I-4 

 

 

Alternative C 

 
  

26

Item 7.



 

Canyon Rims Travel Management Plan Environmental Assessment 

DOI-BLM-UT-Y010-2018-0220-EA  I-5 

 

 

Alternative D 

 
 

27

Item 7.



 

 

 

COMMISSION STAFF REPORT 

MEETING DATE: November 3, 2020 

SUBMITTED BY: Nicole Perkins, Library Director 

TITLE: Consideration and Approval of Verizon Hotspot Grant Contract 

RECOMMENDATION: Approval 

 

SUMMARY 

A CARES Act digital inclusion grant through UEN and Utah State Library to assist in getting WiFi 

access to communities throughout the County.  All expenses are covered with an agreement of 

reimbursement for Hotspot units, 1 year coverage, CIPA requirements, protective cases, etc. 

HISTORY/PAST ACTION 

N/A 

FISCAL IMPACT 

Covered by Grant 

28

Item 8.



 
 
NASPO ValuePoint  

PURCHASING ENTITY AGREEMENT 

WIRELESS, DATA, VOICE AND ACCESSORIES 
Led by the state of Utah 
 

 

Version 2.0 02/20/2020 

Master Agreement #: MA152 
Contractor: CELLCO PARTNERSHIP, D/B/A VERIZON WIRELESS 
Purchasing Entity: San Juan County Library System 

1. Scope: Verizon Wireless (“Contractor”) and the State of Utah, for itself and on behalf of NASPO ValuePoint (“NASPO 
ValuePoint” and/or “Customer”), have entered into a Master Agreement #MA152 with an effective date of August 12, 2019 
(together with any amendments and addenda the "Master Agreement").  The State of Utah (“Participating State”) has 
entered into a Participating Addendum (“PA”) with Contractor pursuant to the Master Agreement, allowing certain state 
agencies, political subdivisions, and other eligible entities to make purchases under the PA.  This Purchasing Entity 
Agreement applies to the purchase and use of Products (e.g. wireless service, software and other services) by the Purchasing 
Entity under the PA.  Contractor reserves the right to terminate this Agreement if at any time it is determined that 
Purchasing Entity is not eligible to purchase under the PA.  All capitalized terms not defined in this Purchasing Entity 
Agreement will have the same meaning provided in the Master Agreement, as modified by the PA. 

2. Participation: By executing this Purchasing Entity Agreement, the Purchasing Entity certifies that it has all approvals 
required by law, regulation or otherwise to complete purchases under the PA, and further represents and agrees as follows: 
2.1. It is eligible to complete purchases under the PA, will provide documentation substantiating its eligibility as may be 

requested by Contractor from time to time, and will immediately notify Contractor of any change in its eligibility to 
purchase under the PA; 

2.2. All purchases are governed by the terms of the Master Agreement and PA, and Purchasing Entity specifically agrees to 
these terms; 

2.3. It consents to the release of its account information to NASPO ValuePoint and the Participating State for the purpose 
of Contractor meeting its contractual reporting requirements, as further described in the Master Agreement and the 
PA;  

2.4. It will ensure that this Purchasing Entity Agreement will only be used in support of government, not for profit and 
private education business; and 

2.5. The contact person listed below (“Authorized Contact”) is authorized to act on behalf of, and otherwise bind 
Purchasing Entity, on account matters, including purchase equipment, add and cancel lines of service. 

3. The undersigned represents and warrants that he or she is fully authorized to execute this Purchasing Entity Agreement on 
behalf of the Purchasing Entity, and that the delivery and execution of this Purchasing Entity Agreement has been approved 
by all required organizational action.  

Street Address:  25 West 300 South 

City, State & Zip: Blanding Utah 84511 

Authorized Contact Phone number: 435 678 2335 

Authorized Contact Email address: nperkins@sanjuancounty.org 

Authorized Signature:  

    

Print Name: Nicole Perkins 

Title: San Juan County Library Director/Blanding Librarian 

Date: 9/30/20 

29

Item 8.



 

 

 

COMMISSION STAFF REPORT 

MEETING DATE: November 3, 2020 

SUBMITTED BY: Nicole Perkins, Library Director 

TITLE: Seeking Approval/Signature from Commissioners for Cellular One 

Hotspot Grant  

RECOMMENDATION: Approval/Signature from Commissioners 

 

SUMMARY 

Grant from UEN and Utah State Library for 10 Cellular One Hotspot units, CIPA requirements, and One 

year service, etc 

HISTORY/PAST ACTION 

N/A 

FISCAL IMPACT 

N/A 

30

Item 9.



Project Number: N/A Date 9/30/2020 Client:

Customer Type: Project State UT Attention:

Product Type: Contact:

Mobile: Office: (928) 537-0375 x2238

Email Address:   cpedersen@cellularoneaz.com

Device 

Quantity

2% Seed 

Stock
Sub-Total

2% Seed 

Stock

10 0 $900 $0.00

10 0 $200 $0.00

20 0 $1,100 $0.00

Tax Rate

Tax

Total

Device 

Quantity

3% Seed 

Stock 
(Excluded from 

MRC)

Discount 

Applied

Discount

Plan Price

10 0 66.67% $35.00

Definitions Included in Services: Technical Specifications - SLA

1. MRC - Monthly Recurring Charge. * 24-hour Outage Number 1. Class of Service: Dedicated Internet Access

2. NRC - Non Recurring Charge (Install Fee.) *  Secured Network Engineered to 99.99% up time 2. Availability: 99.99%

3. MTTR - Meant Time To Respond. *  Updates, Network Maintenance and help line 3. Frame Delay/Latency: <30ms (one way)

*  Graphs provided of usage and available bandwidth 4. Delay Variation/Jitter: <20ms

*  Timeframe to turn up will be provided upon receipt of order 5. MTTR: <4 hours

Signature Date Signature Date

Accepted for Smith Bagley, Inc. by Ian Hathcock

Utah State Library Division

Nicole Perkins

Cody Pedersen

(928) 205-3395

Accepted for Client by Nicole Perkins

$899.90

0.00%

Unlimted Data Plan Equipment

Franklin 717 WIFI Hotspot

1 Year of Mobile Device Management Support (Optional)

Subtotal

4. SBI - Smith Bagley Inc. (parent company to 

Cellular One).

$350.01

Monthly Recurring 

Cost

$1,099.90

6. All equipment shall will remain the property of client after plan is discontinued

7. 2% seed stock applies on orders over 150 devices

5.  Data speeds are not guaranteed. 

$4,200.00

$260.40

Fee for Service from 10/1/2020 to 9/30/2021

MRC Taxes

Description of service

Monthly Recurring Cost: Unlimited Data Plan 

(see details below)

Total Amount Due:

1.  SBI dba Cellular One is providing Open Internet Access and does not assume any responsibility for or exercise any control over the content obtained though Data Service. (See 

Service Agreement)

2. By signing this proposal client is accepting pricing but  not committing to service.  When the Service Agreement is fully executed by both parties this proposal shall be fully 

incorporated as part of the the Service Agreement terms and conditions. 

3. Taxes are subject to change!

4. Unlimited Data Plan. Data plan includes 20 GB of LTE data. After 20 GB-LTE data is used subsequent data transfers will be slowed to 3G like speeds.(see Service Agreement for 

details)

$105.00

Plan Price 

$109.99

$20.00

$89.99

Unit Price Total

$5,560.30

$1,099.90

$200.00

$0.00

31

Item 9.



 

 

 

COMMISSION STAFF REPORT 

MEETING DATE: November 3, 2020 

SUBMITTED BY: Tammy Gallegos, Emergency Manger 

TITLE: Building Resilient Infrastructures and Communities Mitigation Plan Grant 

RECOMMENDATION: Approval 

 

SUMMARY 

This is a grant to renew the Pre-Disaster Mitigation Plan that is up for renewal. The Process takes 2 

years and the current plan is set to expire in 2023.  

HISTORY/PAST ACTION 

We have had this approved this grant to keep us in FEMA compliance.  

FISCAL IMPACT 

$2,500 

32

Item 10.



33

Item 10.



34

Item 10.



35

Item 10.



36

Item 10.



37

Item 10.



38

Item 10.



39

Item 10.



40

Item 10.



41

Item 10.



42

Item 10.



43

Item 10.



44

Item 10.



45

Item 10.



46

Item 10.



47

Item 10.



48

Item 10.



49

Item 10.



50

Item 10.



51

Item 10.



52

Item 10.



53

Item 10.



54

Item 10.



55

Item 10.



56

Item 10.



57

Item 10.



58

Item 10.



59

Item 10.



60

Item 10.



61

Item 10.



62

Item 10.



63

Item 10.



64

Item 10.



65

Item 10.



66

Item 10.



67

Item 10.



Page | 8 

MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING AND AGREEMENT 

 UTAH ASSOCIATION OF COUNTIES 

TAX REFUND EXCHANGE AND COMPLIANCE SYSTEM  

(U-TRECS) 

      This MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING AND AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) is entered into 
this ____ day of ________, 202   by and between the Governing Body of the Unit of Local Government of 
__________________(“Participating Political Subdivision”) and the Utah Association of Counties (“UAC”), 

serving on behalf of the Participating Political Subdivision as the Utah Association of Counties Debt Offset Local 
Agency Clearinghouse (“Local Agency Clearinghouse”). 

RECITAL 

WHEREAS, the Utah Government Code 63A-3-301,302,307,310 as last amended by Laws of Utah 2019, 

Chapter 84 (the "Code"), authorizes the Utah Division of Finance (“Division”), in conjunction with a non-profit 

entity (“Local Agency Clearinghouse”) organized by Participating Political Subdivisions, to offset any eligible 

amount due to a Participating Political Subdivision to satisfy, in whole or in part, a debt (as defined in the Code) 

owed to a Participating Political Subdivision; and 

WHEREAS, the Code provides that eligible amounts due to a Participating Political 

Subdivision for collection are those: 

(1) Debts as defined as an account receivable under statute including any amount due as a

result of judgement, citation, tax, or administrative order, or for which materials or services 

have been provided but not payments have been provided; and 

(2) Are debts that have been unpaid to the Participating Political Subdivision for 90-days or more

WHEREAS, the Division’s FINDER Incoming Debt Interface Developers Guide (“Guide”) establishes the 

procedures by which a Participating Political Subdivision may interface with Utah’s Debt Collection Offset 

Program; and 

WHEREAS, Clearinghouse offers a debt offset program (“Program”) that: (1) complies with the 

Division’s secure data submission requirements for the offset of tax refunds under the Code and the Guide; (ii) acts 

as an agent on behalf of Participating Political Subdivisions with respect to the Division for purposes of the Code 

and the Guide; and (iii) submits Participating Political Subdivision debts for the offset of tax refunds with the 

Division on behalf of Participating Political Subdivisions pursuant to the Code and the Guide; and 

WHEREAS, Participating Political Subdivision desires to enter into this Agreement with Clearinghouse 

in order to participate in the Program in order to increase the collection rate of debts owed the Participating Political 

Subdivision; and 

WHEREAS, Clearinghouse has agreed to submit debts on behalf of Participating Political Subdivision 

pursuant to the Program: 

17th           November        0
San Juan County

68

Item 12.



Page | 9  
 

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants and agreements, terms and conditions 

contained herein, Participating Political Subdivision and Clearinghouse mutually agree as follows: 
 
I.         TERM/TERMINATION.   This Agreement shall be become a legally binding agreement between 

Participating Political Subdivision and Clearinghouse with full legal force and effect upon mutual execution by 

Participating Political Subdivision and Clearinghouse.  This Agreement shall remain and continue in full force 

and effect from year to year unless modified or terminated in writing by either party upon ninety (90) days written 

notice to the other party.  Upon termination of this Agreement all sums due and owing from either party to 

the other shall remain a lawful obligation of the party and be due and payable. Clearinghouse will erase all 

Participating Political Subdivision data files from its debt offset system upon termination. 

II. REPRESENTATIONS AND OBLIGATIONS OF CLAIMANT AGENCY 

 
A.  Participating Political Subdivision hereby designates, appoints, and authorizes Clearinghouse 

to process delinquent debts to be submitted to the Division.  For purposes of the Program, 

"Delinquent Debt" means:  

(i) a single account or monetary obligation which is at least ten dollars ($10.00) owed by a 

debtor to the Participating Political Subdivision; or, 

 
(ii) any group of accounts or monetary obligations, that, when combined, total at least ten 

dollars ($10.00), owed by the same debtor to Claimant Agency. 

 

After Participating Political Subdivision submits file of delinquent records to Clearinghouse, 

Clearinghouse mails pre-intercept notice to debtor on counties’ behalf.  
 

B.  Participating Political Subdivision shall comply with any and all applicable provisions of the Code 

and Division prior to the submission of a debt to Clearinghouse for offset, including the submission 

of required application and/or forms to the Division. 
 

C. Participating Political Subdivision shall, upon execution of this Agreement, file a participation fo rm  

with Clearinghouse designating a debt offset coordinator and a debt offset contact.  Such 

participation form shall be updated on an annual basis and at any time there is a change in the 

information provided thereon.  Clearinghouse shall administratively provide participation forms, as 

needed, for use by Participating Political Subdivision.  The debt offset coordinator shall be the 

designated local government employee authorized to receive notices and communication from 

Clearinghouse to ensure the requirements of this Agreement and the requirements of the Code and 

the Guide are met.  The debt offset coordinator shall supply Clearinghouse with any and all 

information that in the opinion of Clearinghouse is necessary for the proper implementation of this 

Agreement. The debt offset contact will receive all referrals from debtors. 
 

D. Participating Political Subdivision shall use a file format specified by Clearinghouse to prepare debt 

files and adjustments to debt files the Participating Political Subdivision certifies to Clearinghouse 

are owed to Participating Political Subdivision and that desires to have Clearinghouse submit to 

Division. The Clearinghouse shall timely notify the Participating Political Subdivision of any changes 

to the file format and the Participating Political Subdivision covenants and agrees that it shall 

immediately implement any changes required by Clearinghouse. Clearinghouse will establish 

capability of date and time stamping submitted debt files for priority setting. 

 
E. Participating Political Subdivision shall transmit a debt file to Clearinghouse in a method and 

format acceptable to the Clearinghouse.  The Participating Political Subdivision shall make every 

effort to submit a file the week of October 1st. 

69

Item 12.



Page | 10 

F. Participating Political Subdivision shall, after a debt file has been submitted to Clearinghouse,

advise Clearinghouse of any debtor repayment or protests and instructions to delete or reduce a

delinquent debt by submitting a new debt file. If Participating Political Subdivision accepts full

or partial payment against a debt file that has been submitted to Clearinghouse and

sufficient notice is not provided to Clearinghouse to make a timely change to debt file

reflecting the payment, Participating Political Subdivision is responsible to refund any

resulting fee that may be due to debtor. If Participating Political Subdivision erroneously

submits a debt file or submits faulty records to the Clearinghouse, the Participating

Political Subdivision is responsible for any fees charged the debtor by the Clearinghouse

and Division.

III. REPRESENTATIONS AND OBLIGATIONS OF CLEARINGHOUSE

A. Clearinghouse shall, upon receipt of Participating Political Subdivision debt file, compile the

information and submit the data to the Division.

B. After Participating Political Subdivision submits file of delinquent records to Clearinghouse,

Clearinghouse mails pre-intercept notice to debtor on Subdivision’s behalf.

C. After debtors are selected for garnishment, Clearinghouse sends out 21-day notice of garnishment

letter that meets DoF requirements on Subdivision’s behalf.

D. Clearinghouse shall make access to Internet-based functionality available to Participating Political

Subdivision through which Participating Political Subdivision shall submit debt files.

E. Clearinghouse shall provide a social security number look- up service to match each debtor as

submitted by Participating Political Subdivision to the best of its ability.  Participating Political

Subdivision acknowledges that the accuracy of the social security number look up is directly linked

to the accuracy provided by the agency’s input records and the Clearinghouse’s third party look-up

service.

F. Clearinghouse shall provide Participating Political Subdivision an accounting of funds collected

which will include the name of the debtor and the amount of the debt offset by debt unique

identification number.

G. Clearinghouse shall provide a toll-free telephone number for use by Participating Political

Subdivision to receive technical support and provide information on the use of the Clearinghouse

internet-based functionality and the processing of debts for submission to the Division. Technical

support and information shall be available from 8:00 a.m. until 5:00 p.m. (Mountain Time), Monday

through Friday, excluding holidays. Voicemail and e-mail access shall also be provided as a part of

the support/information response system.

IV. UNDERSTANDING OF PARTIES

A. To recover the costs incurred by Clearinghouse for preparation, acquisition of social security

numbers, and ensuring file compliance with Division requirements, a local collection assistance fee

of twenty-five dollars ($25.00) is imposed by Participating Political Subdivision on each delinquent

debt prior to submitting file to Clearinghouse. For any debts paid after the pre-intercept notice

has been sent out and zeroed out from the file submitted to the Division, the Participating

70

Item 12.



Page | 11 

Political Subdivision will be invoiced by the Clearinghouse for the local collection assistance 

fee during the following month.  This fee will only be invoiced by the Clearinghouse for debts 

collected that exceed thirty dollars ($30.00). 

B. For those debts that have not been settled prior to submittal to the Division, the Division will perform

the offset against available refunds, and remit funds offset to the Clearinghouse.    Clearinghouse will

in turn remit funds to the Participating Political Subdivision less the local collection assistance fee of $25.00

on those offsets that exceed thirty dollars ($30.00).

C. When multiple claims among local Participating Political Subdivisions are submitted for offset to

Clearinghouse, the claims have priority based on the date and time each Participating Political

Subdivisions requested Clearinghouse to submit debts on its behalf. The date and time of submission

of the debt file shall constitute the date and time to establish the priority. Clearinghouse shall use

submission receipt date and time of original file for priority date and time of specific debt. Additions

to a delinquent debt through accrued interest and/or penalties will not change the priority date. Any

new delinquent debt for same local claimant agency will have a new submission date and time,

including new debts for a previously submitted debtor.

D. Existing submitted delinquent debts may be adjusted upwards for interest and fees and will retain

their original priority order. A later new delinquent debt, even if from the same debtor shall be date

stamped by Clearinghouse with the later submission date.

E. In the event of partial payment of a delinquent debt, Participating Political Subdivision may continue

to submit the balance of the debt, if ten dollars ($10.00) or more, as a part of subsequent data files. If

the delinquent debt is reduced to an amount of less than ten dollars ($10.00), it may be combined with

a future delinquent debt submission for the same debtor and will be treated as a part of the new

delinquent debt for purposes of priority and imposition of the local collection assistance fee.

F. Clearinghouse shall not accept a debt file that is not prepared as specified by Clearinghouse in

compliance with DoF requirements. Clearinghouse agrees to submit delinquent debts to the Division;

provided, however Participating Political Subdivision is solely responsible for complying with the

Code and DoF requirements.

G. Intercepted funds sent to the Clearinghouse will be disbursed to Participating Political Subdivisions at

direction of Clearinghouse.  The local collection assistance fee will be deducted prior to funds being

sent to Participating Political Subdivisions.  Participating Political Subdivision shall establish and

maintain any necessary accounts to receive intercepted funds as directed by Clearinghouse.

Clearinghouse shall timely direct. Participating Political Subdivision to establish and maintain such

necessary accounts.

V. COMPENSATION

A. Clearinghouse shall receive as compensation for its services the twenty-five ($25.00) local

collection assistance fee added to each delinquent debt. This local collection assistance fee is

invoiced by the Clearinghouse to the Participating Political Subdivision the month following the

debt and local collection assistance fee being collected by the Participating Political Subdivision.

It will only be invoiced for those debts collected in excess of $30.00. For those debts that are

submitted to the Division for intercept, the local collection assistance fee of twenty-five dollars

($25.00) will only be collected upon a successful interception exceeding ($30.00). "Successful

Interception" occurs when the Division matches all or a portion of a debt submitted by Clearinghouse

against a State tax refund or other State payment for interception and payment towards a delinquent

71

Item 12.



Page | 12 

debt owed to Participating Political Subdivision. 

B. Participating Political Subdivision agrees that Clearinghouse shall retain the local collection assistance

fee collected by it in the event Claimant Agency is required, by statute or otherwise, to return to a

debtor funds that have been offset by the Division.

VI. INDEMNIFICATION; REIMBURSEMENT; DISCLAIMER.  Participating Political Subdivision fully

understands and warrants to Clearinghouse that by submission of any delinquent debt submitted to

Clearinghouse for offset Participating Political Subdivision has complied with all of the provisions of this 

Agreement and all of the provisions of the Code and the Division that are required prior to submission of a 

debt for offset. Participating Political Subdivision shall hold Clearinghouse free and harmless and shall 

indemnify Clearinghouse against any and all damages, claims, of action, injuries, actions, liability, or 

proceedings arising from the failure of Participating Political Subdivision to so perform.  

Participating Political Subdivision shall be responsible for the repayment of any sums received by it, 

including interest, penalties and court costs, to a debtor in the event a court of competent jurisdiction rules 

that said repayment is due to a debtor or debtors.   Except as expressly stated in this Agreement, 

Clearinghouse disclaims any representations and warranties that might otherwise be implied in connection 

with this Agreement and Clearinghouse’s services, including, without limitation, any implied warranties 

of merchantability, fitness for a particular purpose, date accuracy, system integration, and non- 

infringement. 

VII. NOTICE.  Any notice required to be given under this Agreement shall be sent by certified or registered

mail postage.

VIII. ASSIGNMENT; SUBCONTRACTING. This Agreement is not assignable by either party. To facilitate

efficient administration of the Program, Clearinghouse may utilize the services of contractors in connection

with Clearinghouse’s obligations under this Agreement, provided that Clearinghouse shall remain

responsible for any such contractor’s acts and omissions in connection with this Agreement as if such acts

and omissions were conducted by Clearinghouse’s own personnel.

IX. CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION; OWNERSHIP RIGHTS.

A. In the course of performance of this Agreement, the parties may find it necessary to disclose to the

other party certain confidential information ("Confidential Information").  Confidential Information

includes, but is not limited to, information relating to the parties’ employees, trade secrets, customers,

vendors, finances, operations, products, and other business information. Except as otherwise provided

by law, the following terms apply to Confidential Information: (i) the receiving party shall treat as

confidential and use the same degree of care as it employs in the protection of its own similar

confidential information, but in no event less than a reasonable degree of care; and, (ii) the receiving

party will only use the information in connection with its business dealings with the disclosing party,

and shall disclose information only to employees or contractors having a need to know and who agree

to be bound by the terms of this Section, unless otherwise authorized in writing by the disclosing party.

Information shall not be subject to these terms if: (i) it is in the public domain at the time  of

disclosure, or enters the public domain without breach of this Agreement; (ii) it is known to the

receiving party prior to the disclosure, or it is independently developed by the receiving party; or (iii)

it is obtained by receiving party in good faith from a third party not under obligation of secrecy to the

disclosing  party.   Receiving  party  will  be  permitted  to  disclose  that  portion  of  Confidential

Information which is the subject of a court or government agency order to disclose, provided the

receiving party gives prompt notice to the disclosing party to allow the disclosing party to contest such

order.  The obligations set forth in this Section survive termination, rescission, non-renewal or

expiration of this Agreement

72

Item 12.



Page | 13 

B. All information, including but not limited to printed, written, oral or computer-formatted information,

which Clearinghouse may gain access to during the course of the performance of this Agreement shall

be the property of Participating Political Subdivision, shall be held in the strictest confidence, and shall

be used solely for the business purposes that are the subject of this Agreement.  Clearinghouse shall

maintain confidentiality of such information not only during the course of the performance of this

Agreement but following its termination.

C. Participating Government Subdivision acknowledges that, as between the parties, Clearinghouse owns

and retains title to all intellectual property rights embodied in, or practiced by, Clearinghouse in

connection with the Program and the proprietary methods utilized by Clearinghouse in performance

of its services under this Agreement, and no licenses of such intellectual property rights to Claimant

Agency are granted or implied by this Agreement.

X. MISCELLANEOUS

A. This Agreement represents the full and final understanding of the parties with respect to the subject

matter described herein and supersedes any and all prior agreements or understandings, written or

oral, express or implied.  This Agreement may be modified or amended only by a written statement

signed by both parties.

B. The laws of the State of Utah shall govern the terms and conditions of this Agreement.

C. Participating Government Subdivision shall enter into no other contract for similar tax return

intercept services with any other entity so long as this Agreement remains in effect.

D. This Agreement is subject to appropriation.

73

Item 12.



Page | 14 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be executed on the 

day and date first above written, all by authority of their respective governing bodies. 

Participating Government Subdivision 

Name   of   Governing   Body   of   Unit   of   Local 

Government:   

  Name 
Signature:  

of Authorized Individual: 

  Title: 

CLEARINGHOUSE 

UTAH ASSOCIATION OF COUNTIES 

Brandy Grace, CEO 

San Juan County

74

Item 12.



 

 

 

COMMISSION STAFF REPORT 

MEETING DATE: November 12, 2020 

SUBMITTED BY: Mack McDonald 

TITLE: Consideration and Agreement of a Memorandum of Understanding and 

Agreement with Utah Association of Counties Tax Refund Exchange and 

Compliance System (U-TRECS), Mack McDonald, Chief Administrative 

Officer 

RECOMMENDATION: Make a motion approving support of the agreement 

 

SUMMARY 

The Agreement is in coordination with the Tax Refund Exchange program for Cities and Counties to 

collect prior debts from debtors, whether those debts are a result of a judgement, citation, tax or 

administrative order. This program will assist the County in collecting debts outstanding primarily from 

individuals who have used the County’s ambulance and who have not paid the debt. Part of the program 

is designed as a 21-day notification of the debt and if not collected, the Agency will then work with the 

State of Utah Division of Finance to begin garnishment through their social security of State Payroll Tax 

Return.  

HISTORY/PAST ACTION 

In the past, the County has used several companies to collect this debt in behalf of the County. However, 

there are still substantial revenues or collection being missed out on by not having a system of 

garnishment.   

FISCAL IMPACT 

There is no cost to the County for these efforts, however, there is a $25.00 cost associated with each debt 

collected by the Agency which is in addition to the debt owed, all of which is to be paid by the debtor. 

Any outstanding debt collected is a positive fiscal impact to the County’s EMS budget.  

 

 

75

Item 12.



 

 

 

COMMISSION STAFF REPORT 

MEETING DATE: November 17, 2020 

SUBMITTED BY: Mack McDonald 

TITLE: Consideration and Approval of a Participation Agreement with Gouldings 

Monument Valley Enterprises, L.C. for $100,000 of CARES Act Funds 

for the Private/Public Well Upgrades 

RECOMMENDATION: Make a motion approving support of the agreement 

 

SUMMARY 

With the approval of the 2nd round of County CARES Act funds, $100,000 was approved to go towards 

Gouldings Monument Valley Enterprises private well and pump that has been used by the public as a 

public drinking water source during this COVID-19 pandemic. These funds will help with required 

maintenance and upgrade the infrastructure system so that it can continue to be used as a public source 

for water.  

HISTORY/PAST ACTION 

N/A 

FISCAL IMPACT 

$100,000 of CARES Act Funds 

 

 

76

Item 13.



{00383976.DOC /}  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Participation Agreement 

between 

San Juan County and 

Gouldings Monument Valley Enterprises, L.C. 
 

 

 

 

November ___ 2020 

77

Item 13.



 

 

 

PARTICIPATION AGREEMENT 

 

San Juan County, a political subdivision of the State of Utah (the “County”), and Gouldings Monument Valley 

Enterprises, L.C. a Utah limited liability company (the “Participant”, and with the County, may be referred to 

herein collectively as “Parties” or individually as a “Party”), agree as follows as of November, ___ 2020 (the 

“Effective Date”): 

 

1. Subject of the Agreement 

 
A. Purpose of the Agreement 

 

The purpose of this Participation Agreement (the “Agreement”) is (a) to implement the Water System 

Upgrades to the private well, pumps and infrastructure services currently being used as a Public 

Distribution Source of culinary water to residents of San Juan County (the “Project”) which the Participant 

has been willing to provide, free of charge to the public, but which resource is not finite nor is the 

maintenance thereof being paid for by the public. The Project consists of the pump, pump house, water 

lines, well, storage tank, buildings or structures such as utility buildings, structures, improvements and 

appurtenants located on, adjacent or near the Project that are reasonably related to the operations of the well 

water and drinking source. (collectively, the “Project”) located near 1000 Main Street, Monument Valley, 

Utah of which the County wishes to use a portion of its CARES Act Funds to reimburse the Participant for 

the improvements to the system and (b) to specify the terms and conditions pursuant to which the County 

and the Participant will cooperate in bringing about this objective, including the funds the County will 

provide to assist in the improvements thereof. The fulfillment of this Agreement is vital to and in the best 

interests of the County and the health, safety, and welfare of its residents during this pandemic, and in 

accord with public purposes and will provide a benefit to the County and its residents.  

 

B. The Project Location 

 

The Project is located within the boundaries of the Participants private property located at 1000 Main Street, 

Monument Valley, Utah which is a part of San Juan County.  

C. Parties to the Agreement 

 

i. County 

 

The County is a public body, corporate and politic, exercising governmental functions and powers, and 

organized and existing under Utah Code Annotated under Title 17 Counties. The address of the County 

for purposes of this Agreement is: 117 South main Street, PO Box 9, Monticello, Utah, 84535 and 

Attention: Mack McDonald. 

 

ii. The Participant 

 

The Participant is Gouldings Monument Valley Enterprises, L.C. a limited liability company. The 

address of the Participant for the purposes of this Agreement is: 1000 Main Street, Monument Valley, 

Utah 84536. 

 

iii. No Additional Approvals. Upon the approval of this Agreement by the County, and 

the expiration of all statutory notice and contest periods, no additional legislative 

action is required for the County to perform its obligations hereunder. 

2. Participation Amount. 

78

Item 13.



 

County shall reimburse the Participant for Project upgrades up to but not to exceed ONE HUNDRED 

THOUSAND DOLLARS AND No/100 ($100,000.00) of the CARES Act Funds that the County received 

in an effort to prevent or mitigate COVID-19 during the current pandemic. The participation amount is 

required to be spent by the U.S. Treasury Department rules governing these funds by December 30, 2020.  

 

3. Early Termination. 

A. County may terminate this contract for any reason, which termination will be effective at midnight on the 

30th day after County’s notice is effective under section 8. 

B. County may terminate this contact, which termination will be effective at the time County’s notice is 

effective under section 8, if: 

(1) The Participant engages in or permits any unlawful or disruptive conduct or any activity not 

permitted by law, regulation, ordinance, this contract, and/or the policies of San Juan County; and 

(2) The Participant fails to immediately cease such conduct or activity after notification by law 

enforcement, San Juan County, or otherwise. 

C. Either party may terminate this contract after a material breach of this contract by the other party, which 

termination will be effective after the notice is effective under section 8. 

4. Warranties. 

A. The Participant warrants to San Juan County that: 

(1) All materials and equipment furnished under this contract shall be: 

(a) New; 

(b) Under manufacturer’s warranty; 

(c) Of reasonable quality; and 

(d) Free from faults and defects; and 

(2) All services performed under this contract shall: 

(a) Be of reasonable quality;  

(b) Conform with reasonable professional standards; and 

(c) Conform to codes, regulations, and laws. 

(d) Materials, Plans, Artwork, Drawings, Brochures, Maps, and Documents produced under this 

contract will be provided to the County upon completion. County may use these items in future 

projects or opportunities as the County needs arise without written consent or authorization from 

any other party.  

B. Participant shall correct or replace any materials or equipment that does not satisfy subsections 

5.A.(1)(a)-(d) within 30 days after County’s notice is effective under section 8. 

C. Participant shall correct any services performed that do not satisfy subsections 5.A.(2)(a)-(c) within 30 

days after County’s notice is effective under section 8. 

D. The parties acknowledge that the warranties set forth in Title 70A, Chapter 2, Part 3, Utah Code 

Annotated, apply to this contract. 

E. The Participant shall assign and deliver to County all manufacturers’ warranties relating to the materials 

and equipment furnished under this contract as soon as reasonably possible, but in no event later than 10 

days after this contract terminates. 

5. Insurance. The Participant shall maintain for the duration of this Participation Agreement the following 

types of insurance: 

A. A valid occurrence form commercial general liability insurance policy, which covers contractual liability 

and contractual agreements, with minimum limits as follows: 

(1) Each occurrence - $1,000,000.00; 

(2) Damage to Rented Premises - $300,000.00; 

(3) Medical Exp. (Any one person) - $5,000.00; 

(4) Personal and Adv. Injury - $2,000,000.00; 

(5) General aggregate - $2,000,000.00; and 

(6) Products – Comp/Op aggregate - $2,000,000.00; 

79

Item 13.



 

B. A valid automobile liability insurance policy that satisfies the minimum amounts required by Utah law; 

and 

C. A valid Workers Compensation and Employers’ Liability insurance policy with minimum limits as 

required by Utah law. If any proprietor, partner, executive, officer, member, or other person is excluded 

from the Workers Compensation and Employers’ Liability insurance policy, the Participant shall provide 

County with the applicable state issued waiver. 

For the duration of this Agreement and for a year after the termination of this contract, County may request 

the Participant to provide County with certificates or other records that demonstrate that the Participant is in 

compliance with the insurance requirements set forth in this section (the “Certificates/Records”). If the 

Participant fails to have the insurances required by this contract, County may immediately terminate this 

contract. 

6. Indemnification. With respect to any judicial, administrative, or arbitration action, suit, claim, investigation, 

or proceeding (“Proceeding”) against County, County’s officers, employees, agents, consultants, advisors, 

and other representatives, and each of their heirs, executors, successors, and assignees (“San Juan County 

Indemnitees”) that arises out of this contract or the acts or omissions of Participant (each, a “Claim”), 

Participant shall, for the duration of this contract and for a period of six years after the termination of this 

contract, indemnify those San Juan County Indemnitees against any amount awarded in, or paid in settlement 

of any Proceeding, including interest (“Loss”) and any out-of-pocket expense incurred in defending a 

Proceeding or in any related investigation or negotiation, including court filing fees, court costs, arbitration 

fees, witness fees, and attorneys’ and other professionals’ fees and disbursements (“Litigation Expense”) 

(Loss and Litigation Expense means “Indemnifiable Losses”) arising out of that Proceeding, except to the 

extent that County negligently or intentionally caused those Indemnifiable Losses. 

7. Notices. All notices must be in writing and must be delivered personally, by a nationally recognized 

overnight courier, or by United States mail, postage prepaid and addressed to the parties at their respective 

addresses set forth below, and the same shall be effective upon receipt if delivered personally, on the next 

business day if sent by overnight courier, or three business days after deposit in the United States mail, if 

mailed. The initial addresses of the parties shall be: 

San Juan County Participant 

San Juan County          With a copy to: 

Attn: Mack McDonald                  San Juan County 

PO Box 9          Attn: Attorney’s Office 

Monticello, UT  84535          PO Box 9  

            Monticello, UT  84535 

 Gouldings Monument Valley 

Enterprises L.C.  

1000 Main Street 

Monument Valley, Utah 84536 

8. Independent Contractor. The Participant shall perform this contract as an independent contractor. The 

Participant acknowledges that it and its representatives are not employees of County, and, thus, have no right 

to and shall not be provided with any County benefits. 

9. Conflict of Terms. In the event of any conflict between the terms of this contract and any documents 

referenced in this contract or incorporated into this contract by reference, including exhibits or attachments to 

this contract, this contract shall control. 

10. Assignment Restricted. Except with the prior written consent of the other party, each party shall not 

transfer, including by merger (whether that party is the surviving or disappearing entity), consolidation, 

dissolution, or operation of law: 

A. Any discretion granted under this contract; 

B. Any right to satisfy a condition under this contract; 

C. Any remedy under this contract; or 
D. Any obligation imposed under this contract. 

Any purported transfer in violation of this section will be void. 

80

Item 13.



 

11. Waiver. No waiver of satisfaction of a condition or nonperformance of an obligation under this contract will 

be effective unless it is in writing and signed by the party granting the waiver. 

12. Entire Contract; Amendment. This contract, including all attachments, if any, constitutes the entire 

understanding between the parties with respect to the subject matter in this contract. Unless otherwise set 

forth in this contract, this contract supersedes all other agreements, whether written or oral, between the 

parties with respect to the subject matter in this contract. No amendment to this contract will be effective 

unless it is in writing and signed by both parties. 

13. Governing Law; Exclusive Jurisdiction. Utah law governs any Proceeding brought by one party against the 

other party arising out of this contract. If either party brings any Proceedings against the other party arising 

out of this contract, that party may bring that Proceeding only in a state court located in San Juan County, 

Utah (for claims that may only be resolved through the federal courts, only in a federal court located in Salt 

Lake City, Utah), and each party hereby submits to the exclusive jurisdiction of such courts for purposes of 

any such proceeding. 

14. Severability. The parties acknowledge that if a dispute between the parties arises out of this contract or the 

subject matter of this contract, the parties desire the court to interpret this contract as follows: 

A. With respect to any provision that it holds to be unenforceable, by modifying that provision to the 

minimum extent necessary to make it enforceable or, if that modification is not permitted by law, by 

disregarding that provision; and 

B. If an unenforceable provision is modified or disregarded in accordance with this section, by holding that 

the rest of the contract will remain in effect as written. 

15. Counterparts, Digital Signatures, and Electronically Transmitted Signatures. If the parties sign this 

contract in counterparts, each will be deemed an original but all counterparts together will constitute one 

contract. If the parties digitally sign this contract or electronically transmit signatures by email, such 

signatures will have the same force and effect as original signatures. 

Each party is signing this contract on the date below the party’s signature. 

SAN JUAN COUNTY 

By:       

       

      San Juan County Board of County Commissioners 

 

Date:       

ATTEST: 

       

John David Nielson 

San Juan County Clerk/Auditor 

Date:       

GOULDINGS MONUMENT VALLEY  

ENTERPRISES, L.C.  

 

 

By:  

 

 

 

Date:  

 

 

 

 

 

81

Item 13.



    Clerk/Auditor 
  John David Nielson 
  jdnielson@sanjuancounty.org 
 
 

PO Box 338              117 South Main Street                    Monticello, Utah 84535                    435-587-3223  
 

 

2020 General Election Results - November 3, 2020 – San Juan County 

 

PRESIDENT OF THE UNITED STATES AND VICE PRESIDENT 

Brock Pierce, Karla Ballard – Unaffiliated 16 

Kanye West, Michelle Tidball – Unaffiliated 44 

Joseph R Biden, Kamala D Harris – Democrat 3082 
Don Blankenship, William Mohr – Constitution 27 

Jo Jorgensen, Jeremy Cohen – Liberterian 99 
Joe McHugh, Elizabeth Storm – Unaffiliated 19 

Howie Hawkins, Angela Walker – Green 16 
Gloria La Riva – Unaffiliated 5 

Donald J Trump, Michael R Pence – Republican 3525 

Write-In: Brian Carroll 1 
 

U.S. HOUSE – DISTRICT #3 

John Curtis – Republican 3521 
Daniel Clyde Cummings – Constitution 206 

Thomas G McNeill – United Utah 143 

Devin D Thorpe – Democrat 2479 
Write-In: Trey Robinson 3 

 

GOVERNOR AND LIEUTENANT GOVERNOR 

Chris Peterson, Karina Brown – Democrat 2617 
Greg Duerden, Wayne Hill – Independent American 133 

Spencer J Cox, Deidre M Henderson – Republican 3468 
Daniel Rhead Cottom, Barry Evan Short – Liberterian 256 

Write-In: Madeline Kazantzis, Ed Kennedy 61 
Write-In: Kristena M Conlin 7 

 

 

 

82

Item 14.

mailto:jdnielson@sanjuancounty.org


    Clerk/Auditor 
  John David Nielson 
  jdnielson@sanjuancounty.org 
 
 

PO Box 338              117 South Main Street                    Monticello, Utah 84535                    435-587-3223  
 

ATTORNEY GENERAL 

Rudy J Bautista – Liberterian 480 
Greg Skordas – Democrat 2652 

Sean D Reyes – Republican 3353 
 

STATE AUDITOR 

John ‘Frugal’ Dougall – Republican 3853 

Jeffrey L Ostler – Constitution 1107 
Brian L Fabbi – United Utah 631 

 

STATE TREASURER 

Richard Proctor – Constitution 1004 
David Damschen – Republican 3811 

Joseph Speciale – Liberterian 875 
 

STATE SENATE – DISTRICT #27 

David Parley Hinkins – Republican 4826 

 

STATE HOUSE – DISTRICT #73 

Phil Lyman – Republican 4883 

 

COUNTY COMMISSION DISTRICT #1 

Bruce Adams – Republican 1851 
Monette Tangren Clark – United Utah 481 

 
COUNTY ASSESSOR 

Rick D Meyer 5103 
 

COUNTY RECORDER 
Cindi Holyoak 4975 

 
 

83

Item 14.

mailto:jdnielson@sanjuancounty.org


    Clerk/Auditor 
  John David Nielson 
  jdnielson@sanjuancounty.org 
 
 

PO Box 338              117 South Main Street                    Monticello, Utah 84535                    435-587-3223  
 

COUNTY SURVEYOR 
Kent ‘Sam’ Cantrell 4991 

 
COUNTY TREASURER 

Glenis B Pearson 5040 
 

SCHOOL BOARD #1 
Lori Maughan 1150 

 
SCHOOL BOARD #2 

Merri Shumway 652 

Write-In: Bret Allen Hosler 519 
 

SCHOOL BOARD #3 
Steven C Black 949 

 
PROPOSITION #11 

Yes 118 
No 24 

 
JUDICIAL RETENTION 

JUSTICE OF THE SUPREME COURT – JOHN A. PEARCE 
Yes 3983 

No 1423 

 
JUDGE OF THE COURT OF APPEALS OF UTAH – DAVID N. MORTENSEN 

Yes 3876 
No 1457 

 
JUDGE OF THE COURT OF APPEALS OF UTAH – DIANA HAGEN 

Yes 3963 
No 1352 

 
 

84

Item 14.

mailto:jdnielson@sanjuancounty.org


    Clerk/Auditor 
  John David Nielson 
  jdnielson@sanjuancounty.org 
 
 

PO Box 338              117 South Main Street                    Monticello, Utah 84535                    435-587-3223  
 

JUDGE OF THE COURT OF APPEALS OF UTAH – GREGORY KEITH ORME 
Yes 3797 

No 1485 
 

JUDGE OF THE COURT OF APPEALS OF UTAH – JILL M. POHLMAN 
Yes 3864 

No 1422 

 
JUDGE OF THE COURT OF APPEALS OF UTAH – MICHELE M. CHRISTIANSEN FOSTER 

Yes 3892 

No 1384 

 
JUDGE OF THE COURT OF APPEALS OF UTAH – RYAN M. HARRIS 

Yes 3784 
No 1477 

 
JUDGE OF THE JUVENILE COURT OF THE SEVENTH JUVENILE COURT DISTRICT – 

CRAIG M. BUNNELL 
Yes 3921 

No 1411 
 

JUDGE OF THE JUVENILE COURT OF THE SEVENTH JUVENILE COURT DISTRICT – 
MARY L. MANLEY 

Yes 3996 
No 1492 

 
PROPOSED CONSTITUTIONAL AMENDMENTS 

AMENDEMENT A 
For 2821 

Against 3395 

 
AMENDMENT B 

For 4441 
Against 1588 

85

Item 14.

mailto:jdnielson@sanjuancounty.org


    Clerk/Auditor 
  John David Nielson 
  jdnielson@sanjuancounty.org 
 
 

PO Box 338              117 South Main Street                    Monticello, Utah 84535                    435-587-3223  
 

AMENDMENT C 
For 4009 

Against 2073 
 

AMENDMENT D 
For 3335 

Against 2603 

 
AMENDMENT E 

For 5091 
Against 1133 

 
AMENDMENT F 

For 3524 
Against 2342 

 
AMENDMENT G 

For 3692 

Against 2457 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

86

Item 14.

mailto:jdnielson@sanjuancounty.org


    Clerk/Auditor 
  John David Nielson 
  jdnielson@sanjuancounty.org 
 
 

PO Box 338              117 South Main Street                    Monticello, Utah 84535                    435-587-3223  
 

TURNOUT 
**See Attachment 

 

Rejected Ballots 

No Signature 20 
Mismatch Signature 36 

Returned Late 10 
Other 39 

Provisional 57 

 

Certification: 

The Board of Canvassers has reviewed the Official Canvas Report and certifies 

that the election information contained in it is accurate. 

X
Kenneth Maryboy

Commission Chair

 
 

X
Willie Grayeyes

Commission Vice Chair

 
 

X
Bruce Adams

Commissioner

 

87

Item 14.

mailto:jdnielson@sanjuancounty.org


General Election

2020

Canvass

Precincts 1 2GD 2 2MC 3 4 4BD 5 5BD 6 6BD 7BD 7BD2 8 8BD 8BF 9 10 10BF 10BF"BSA 11 11BF 12 12BD Totals

Countywide 322 1 492 1030 1426 222 0 7 609 85 9 474 29 847 0 1 60 164 19 160 1345 2 19 467 7790

Voting 288 1 460 966 1255 212 0 8 544 73 8 441 25 717 0 0 36 141 16 148 1168 1 18 395 6921

PRESIDENT OF THE UNITED STATES & VICE PRESIDENT

Brock Pierce, Karla Ballard 1 0 0 0 4 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 4 0 0 0 1 0 0 4 0 0 2 16

Kanye West, Michelle Tidball 0 0 1 4 14 0 0 0 4 0 0 1 1 3 0 0 0 0 0 0 15 0 0 1 44

Joseph R Biden, Kamala D Harris 82 0 126 15 876 17 0 0 85 12 2 76 6 408 0 0 35 119 14 124 860 1 4 77 2939

Don Blankenship, William Mohr 1 0 0 2 2 0 0 0 1 0 0 5 0 6 0 0 0 0 0 0 7 0 0 3 27

Jo Jorgensen, Jeremy Cohen 10 0 9 16 6 4 0 0 18 0 0 4 0 7 0 0 0 1 0 2 10 0 0 12 99

Joe McHugh, Elizabeth Storm 0 0 0 3 8 0 0 0 1 0 0 3 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 2 0 0 1 19

Howie Hawkins, Angela Walker 1 0 1 0 3 0 0 0 5 0 0 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 4 0 0 0 16

Gloria La Riva 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2 5

Donald J Trump, Michael R Pence 193 1 317 764 332 187 0 8 426 59 6 4 18 277 0 0 0 15 2 19 248 0 14 295 3185

Write-In 0 0 4 8 4 3 0 0 0 0 0 2 0 3 0 0 0 0 0 0 2 0 0 1 27

U.S. HOUSE - DISTRICT 3

John Curtis 191 1 294 751 352 184 0 8 409 59 5 336 19 293 0 0 5 21 2 35 241 0 14 301 3521

Daniel Clyde Cummings 6 0 17 26 31 4 0 0 24 0 2 12 0 22 0 0 2 4 0 1 46 0 0 8 205

Thomas G McNeill 9 0 10 14 31 0 0 0 11 0 0 6 0 14 0 0 1 3 0 1 33 0 0 10 143

Devin D Thorpe 66 0 107 106 714 13 0 0 64 0 0 56 4 308 0 0 18 96 13 99 744 1 3 59 2471

Write-In 0 0 1 3 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 3 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 1 11

GOVERNOR & LIEUTENANT GOVERNOR

Chris Peterson, Karina Brown 67 0 118 106 745 16 0 0 71 10 0 64 5 330 0 0 23 100 13 114 773 1 3 58 2617

Greg Duerden, Wayne Hill 6 0 6 13 24 2 0 0 6 0 1 16 0 17 0 0 0 4 1 1 28 0 0 8 133

Spencer J Cox, Deidre M Henderson 174 1 264 760 369 174 0 7 386 55 7 317 17 293 0 0 9 25 2 27 276 0 12 293 3468

Daniel Rhead Cottam, Barry Evan Short 14 0 33 27 27 10 0 0 35 4 0 16 1 23 0 0 1 1 0 1 42 0 3 18 256

Write-In 16 0 16 21 7 1 0 0 21 0 0 8 0 6 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 4 100

ATTORNEY GENERAL

Rudy J Bautista 21 0 37 51 80 14 0 0 53 7 0 34 0 36 0 0 7 6 0 3 106 0 1 24 480

Greg Skordas 70 0 131 161 727 18 0 0 83 11 0 71 6 331 0 0 17 98 13 113 738 1 3 60 2652

Sean D Reyes 189 1 272 702 351 166 8 363 51 7 323 16 282 0 9 25 3 27 249 0 14 295 3353

STATE AUDITOR

John 'Frugal' Dougall 194 1 297 744 463 179 0 8 423 61 8 325 17 344 0 0 11 33 4 32 383 0 13 313 3853

Jeffrey L Ostler 25 0 29 73 315 8 0 0 37 4 0 36 3 152 0 0 3 44 2 14 326 1 5 30 1107

Brian L Fabbi 36 0 59 49 130 6 0 0 34 4 0 24 2 49 0 0 10 13 4 31 161 0 0 19 631

88

Item 14.



STATE TREASURER

Richard Proctor 19 0 35 66 269 16 0 0 42 4 2 25 1 144 0 0 4 26 2 6 313 0 2 28 1004

David Damschen 204 1 283 745 469 176 0 8 413 59 6 334 17 317 0 0 11 39 5 45 354 1 15 309 3811

Joseph Speciale 32 0 48 58 218 11 0 0 37 6 0 33 4 90 0 0 10 32 1 30 233 0 1 31 875

STATE SENATE - DISTRICT 27

David Parley Hinkins 215 1 321 784 729 186 0 8 450 67 6 362 19 466 0 0 22 69 5 43 714 0 18 341 4826

STATE HOUSE - DISTRICT 73

Phil Lyman 213 1 318 765 753 198 0 8 472 65 7 366 20 497 0 0 18 74 4 33 722 0 18 331 4883

COUNTY COMMISSIONER #1

Bruce Adams 192 1 291 782 184 0 6 395 1851

Monette Tangren Clark 79 0 138 141 19 0 0 104 481

COUNTY ASSESSOR

Rick D Meyer 222 1 348 828 756 189 0 8 480 65 7 391 21 507 0 0 29 82 7 61 717 1 17 366 5103

COUNTY RECORDER

Cindi Holyoak 232 1 331 813 744 191 0 8 472 67 8 372 20 482 0 0 22 71 6 61 703 0 17 354 4975

COUNTY SURVEYOR

Kent "Sam" Cantrell 225 1 344 831 727 195 0 8 469 67 8 378 20 476 0 0 23 73 7 81 688 1 17 352 4991

COUNTY TREASURER

Glenis B Pearson 228 1 349 851 738 193 0 7 467 68 7 383 20 486 0 0 25 72 6 61 706 0 17 355 5040

SCHOOL BOARD - DISTRICT #1

Lori Maughan 1 332 818 0 1151

SCHOOL BOARD - DISTRICT #2

Merri Shumway 116 0 4 247 34 8 224 19 652

Write-In 72 0 2 249 36 0 173 3 535

SCHOOL BOARD - DISTRICT #3

Steven C Black 543 0 27 18 361 949

PROPOSITION #11

Yes 118 118

No 24 24

89

Item 14.



JUDICIAL RETENTION - SUPREME COURT OF UTAH

JOHN A PEARCE

Yes 183 1 266 627 656 134 0 7 316 49 2 263 12 380 0 0 15 61 9 54 655 0 11 282 3983

No 41 0 77 126 311 36 0 0 116 15 2 95 7 154 0 0 12 36 1 38 294 0 6 56 1423

JUDICIAL RETENTION - COURT OF APPEALS OF UTAH

DAVID N MORTENSEN

Yes 181 1 259 616 641 131 0 7 295 49 2 256 12 376 0 0 16 61 9 49 627 0 10 278 3876

No 41 0 70 137 317 37 0 0 131 15 2 98 7 149 0 0 11 35 1 36 309 0 7 54 1457

DIANA HAGEN

Yes 182 1 274 618 671 131 0 7 309 47 1 274 9 367 0 0 14 59 9 60 641 0 10 279 3963

No 43 0 60 127 278 39 0 0 120 15 2 83 10 153 0 0 13 35 2 25 285 0 7 55 1352

GREGORY KEITH ORME

Yes 174 1 261 603 604 124 0 6 304 47 0 264 12 356 0 0 17 60 6 51 618 0 8 281 3797

No 49 0 70 136 339 45 0 1 124 16 3 93 7 160 0 0 11 33 4 32 301 0 9 52 1485

JULL M POHLMAN

Yes 184 1 272 610 639 128 0 7 306 46 0 263 12 355 0 0 16 48 9 58 621 0 9 280 3864

No 41 0 58 131 305 38 0 0 120 17 2 91 7 164 0 0 11 44 2 27 302 0 8 54 1422

MICHELE M CHRISTIANSEN FORSTER

Yes 182 1 269 613 649 132 0 6 311 45 0 264 12 363 0 0 16 54 9 56 622 0 10 278 3892

No 43 0 58 127 292 37 0 1 117 17 2 90 6 158 0 0 10 39 2 29 294 0 7 55 1384

RYAN M HARRIS

Yes 172 1 254 600 616 127 0 7 301 48 0 260 12 360 0 0 15 58 8 44 618 0 10 273 3784

No 51 0 75 143 319 40 0 0 124 18 2 92 7 158 0 0 12 36 3 38 293 0 6 63 1480

SEVENTH JUVENILE COURT DISTRICT

CRAG M BUNNELL

Yes 182 1 273 634 636 142 0 8 311 46 0 270 12 356 0 0 19 54 8 48 621 0 10 290 3921

No 45 0 61 127 307 31 0 0 124 17 2 90 7 162 0 0 8 41 3 34 296 0 7 49 1411

MARY L MANLEY

Yes 179 1 264 620 684 146 0 7 306 45 1 275 10 384 0 0 17 59 9 66 658 0 10 255 3996

No 53 0 89 177 268 35 0 1 145 18 1 101 9 156 0 0 11 35 3 28 269 0 6 87 1492

PROPOSED CONSTITUTIONAL AMENDMENTS

Constitutional Amendment A

For 125 0 198 362 554 63 0 0 185 22 2 146 12 271 0 0 22 56 13 117 524 0 4 145 2821

Against 158 1 227 543 507 141 0 8 312 48 5 255 10 336 0 0 11 51 3 22 510 0 14 233 3395

Constitutional Amendment B

For 192 1 296 667 776 145 0 6 329 49 6 270 17 425 0 0 26 68 13 106 762 0 9 278 4441

Against 79 0 108 203 262 55 0 2 156 16 1 121 4 166 0 0 3 36 2 20 254 0 9 91 1588

Constitutional Amendment C

For 178 1 267 605 720 116 0 7 298 37 6 260 15 358 0 0 24 61 11 125 655 0 10 255 4009

Against 94 0 145 273 326 83 0 1 192 26 1 129 6 239 0 0 8 39 5 14 365 0 8 119 2073

Constitutional Amendment D

For 116 0 199 505 626 79 0 2 249 21 4 205 13 324 0 0 18 62 9 76 608 0 4 215 3335

Against 146 1 197 344 410 119 0 6 222 42 2 183 6 263 0 0 12 36 5 53 395 0 14 147 2603

Constitutional Amendment E

For 210 1 329 737 914 174 0 7 419 58 7 328 18 517 0 0 28 85 9 73 847 0 12 318 5091

Against 56 0 93 164 179 26 0 1 73 11 0 78 2 103 0 0 4 20 6 59 193 0 5 60 1133

Constitutional Amendment F

For 150 1 232 508 633 93 0 3 283 44 3 225 10 341 0 0 16 56 10 93 586 0 7 230 3524

Against 105 0 155 328 383 102 0 4 182 19 2 152 9 248 0 0 12 43 4 33 416 0 11 134 2342

Constitutional Amendment G

For 135 1 184 467 808 69 0 3 192 30 2 203 10 386 0 0 24 79 10 87 813 0 5 184 3692

Against 132 0 235 409 263 131 0 4 299 37 4 203 11 227 0 0 9 22 6 49 216 0 13 187 2457

90

Item 14.


	Top
	Item 1.	10/3/2020 Expenditures
	20201027scan
	20201105scan

	Item 2.	Approval of the October 20, 2020 Commission Minutes
	October 20, 2020

	Item 3.	Streakwave Purchases for Cares Act
	3479_001

	Item 4.	Gmail Upgrade
	3480_001

	Item 5.	Davina's Presentation Womens Shelter
	ITEM-Staff-69640efa86b448eea0f1e3f5ad9420f5 (1)

	Item 6.	Letter to Utah Division of Water Quality
	StaffReptCuInsituPermit
	UDWQCuMineInSituPermit
	UDWQCopperMineInSituProposal

	Item 7.	Canyon Rims Travel Management Plan
	StaffReptlCanyonRimsTMP
	BLMCynRimsTMPEA
	Pages from Canyon Rims EA.pdf.10.13.2020 (1)

	Item 8.	Verizon Hotspot Grant
	ITEM-Staff-69640efa86b448eea0f1e3f5ad9420f5
	PEA - San Juan County Library 9-2020

	Item 9.	Cellular One Hotspot Grant
	ITEM-Staff-69640efa86b448eea0f1e3f5ad9420f5 (1)
	Unlimited Data Plan Utah State Library Division (1)

	Item 10.	Building Resilient Infrastructures and Communities Mitigation Plan Grant
	Staff report for Commission BRIC Grant 10 20 2020
	Bric application

	Item 12.	MOU for Tax Refund Exchange
	6 Memorandum of Understanding - UAC 72220
	ITEM-Staff-69640efa86b448eea0f1e3f5ad9420f5 (1)

	Item 13.	Gouldings Well Improvements Participation Agreement
	ITEM-Staff-69640efa86b448eea0f1e3f5ad9420f5 (1)
	Gouldings Well Funds Participation Agreementt

	Item 14.	2020 General Election Canvass
	2020 General Election Canvass
	Canvass Spreadsheet

	Bottom

